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We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED (“the Company”) as at December 31, 2017 and the retated profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity, together with the notes forming
part thereof {here-in-after referred to as the ‘financial statements’) for the year then ended, and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and bellef, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

1t is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Intemationat Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due
verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Cdmpanies
Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

i. the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up
in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

ji. the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business;
and

jii. the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash fiow
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

e) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of

1980). -
Chartered Accou ;S

Engagement Partner
Mushtaq Ali Hirani

pated: 7 § MAR 2018

Karachi
Member of

Daloltte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lending's to financial institutions
Investments - net

Advances - net

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities

 Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated loss

Conversion of liabilities into share capital
Surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of assets

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017 2016
(Rupees in '000) —mr
53,531 121,378
771,582 650,310
851,542 400,188
6,489,513 6,841,040
11,449,397 11,816,929
292,715 315,461
421,793 761,165
20,330,073 20,906,471
5,300,971 6,587,429
5,300,971 6,587,429
15,029,102 14,319,042
19,365,000 3,001,000
1,037,680 713,662
(5,375,752) (5,757,934)
15,026,928 (2,043,272)
- 16,364,000
2,174 {1,686)
15,029,102 14,319,042
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Rental / mark-up / return / interest income
Rental / mark-up / return / interest expense
Rentat / mark-up / retumn / interest income - aet

Reversal / (provision) against non-performing advances - net

* Reversal of provision against lendings to financial institutions

Reversal of provision against diminution in value of investments - net

Reconciliation adjustments

Relief package and reprocessing adjustments
Ghar Asaan Incentive Scheme

Write-off against advances

NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign currcncws

{Loss)/gain on sale of securities

Unreatized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment classified
as heid for rading

Other income

Total non-mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses

Other provisions

Other charges

Total non-mark-up / interest expenses

Extra~-ordinary/unusual items
Share of profit before taxation from an associate

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation
PROFIT/LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

Basic and diluted earnings per share - Rupees
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017

2016

(Rupees in '000) -

2,268,561 2,606,851
- (1,068,019) |
2,268,561 1,538,832
655,502 (869,068)
1,114 17,619
24,844 -
681,460 (851,449)
@s) (847) .
(7,405) (9,736) |
(86,468) -
(598) (805)
2.855475 675,995
(487) 7,920 |
185,835 273,250|
185,348 281,170
3,040,823 957,165
(1,017,816) (1,758,099)
(2,488) (32,367)
(8,073) 9,552
(1,028,377 (1,800,018)
2,012,446 (842,853)
1,430 6,986
2,013,876 (835,867)
(393,786) (30,083}
1,620,090 (865,950)
116 (2.89)
IRECTOR
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income
Htems not to be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent years
- Actuarial loss on revaluation of defined benefit plan - net 2932

Other comprehensive income transferred to equity

Components of other comprehensive income
not reflected in equity

- Surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of ‘available-for-sale securities'

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017 2016

(Rupees in '000) ——

1,620,090 (865,950)
|

(913,890) (102,287
706,200 (968,237
2,174 (103,317)
708,374 (1,072,054)
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Share capital Sr:::_t:’)e? Acc“l[: :ated Total
(Ruapees in "000)
Balance as at January 01, 2016 3,001,000 713,662 (4,789,697 {1,075,035)
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss after tax for the year - - {865,950) (865,950)
Other comprehensive income - - (102,287} (102,287
- - (968,237) (968,237) |
Transfer to statutory reserve * - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2016 3,001,000 713,662 (5,757,934) (2,043,272) )
Comprehensive income for the year ‘
Conversion of liability into share capital 16,364,000 - - 16,364,000 l
Profit after tax for the year‘ _ - - 1,620,090 1,620,090
Other comprehensive income - - . {913,890) (913,890)
- - 706,200 706,200 -
Transfer to statutory reserve * - 324,018 {324,018) -
Ralance at December 31, 2017 19,365,000 1,037,680 (5,375,752) 15,026,928

* This represents reserve created under BPD circular No. 15 of 2004 which requires the Company to credit to its reserve an,
amount not less than 20% of its after tax profit till such time the reserve equals the amount of paid-up capital. Thereafter, a sum

not less than 5% of its after tax profit shall be credited to the said reserve.

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
. Note -——— (Rupees in '0040) ~-—
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES '
Profit before taxation 2,013,876 (835,867)
Adjustments
Reversal / (provision) against non-performing advances - net (655,502) 869,068
Reversal of provision against lendings to financial institutions (1,114) (17,619)
Reversal of provision against diminution in value of investments - net (24,844) -
Reconciliation adjustments 75 847
Relief package and reprocessing adjustments 7,405 9,891
~ Recovery of Pakistan Housing Authority (PHA) balance - (218,143)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 33 (42,021)
Depreciation of property and equipment 31,361 30,595
Amortization of intangibles 331 an
Provision for advance against purchase of land - housing projects - 3,345
Share of profit before taxation from an associate (1,430) {6,986)
Adjustments in cost and depreciation - 28,741
(643,751) 658,089
1,370,125 (177,778)
Decrease / (increase) in operating assets
Lending’s to financial institutions (451,354) (382,569)
Advances - net . 1,015,554 {1,183,829)
Other assets (excluding advance tax - net) 9,338 216,680
573,588 (1,349,718)
(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities '
Other liabilities (2,200,348) 1,411,930
(256,635)
Income tax paid (63,135) (134,138)
Net cash used in operating activities (319,770) (249]704)

. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i
Investments realized - net 382,109 791,289
Capital expenditure (9,135) (3.315)
Proceed from disposal of operating fixed assets 221 43404
Net cash generated from investing activities 373,195 $31,378
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) 53,425 581,674
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 771,688 190,014
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 27. 825,113 771,688

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

L. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

House Building Finance Company Limited (the Company) is an unlisted public limited company 'mcorporatec( in
Pakistan on June 13, 2006 under the . Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated at
Finance and Trade Centre Building, Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, in the province of Sindh. Pursuant to & vesting orhér
SRO.I/2007 dated July 25, 2007 issued by Finance Division - Government of Pakistan effective from January 1, 2m
the Company had taken over all assets, running business, contracts, liabilities and proceedings of the House Buildin

Finance Corporation established ir 1952 under the House Building Finance Corporation Act, 1952 (XVIH of 1952) by
the Government of Pakistan from closing of the business on December 31, 2006 and has also changed its name from
House Building Finance Corporation Limited to House Building Finance Company Limited in 2010.

The Company is designated as a financial institution by the Federal Government and is providing financing facilities
for the purchase, construction and renovation of houses through a network of 46 branches and 3 zonal ofﬁ;ces
throughout Pakistan including Azad Jammu and Kashmir. According to credit rating report dated June 23, 2017 of JCR-
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited, the long term and short term ratings of the Company are "A" and "A-1".

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of format prescribed by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) BSD Circular no. 04 dated February 17, 2006 as amended from time to time.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

|
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicabld in
Pakistan, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, Companies Ordinance, 1984 and directives issued by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Approved accounting standards
comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance,1984. In case requirements differ, provisions of

Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, Companies Ordinance, 1984 and directives issued by the SBP and SECP sﬁall
prevail. |

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on May 30, 2017 and same into force at once. Subwqum#ly,
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has notified through Circular no. 23 of October 04, 2017 !
companies whose financial year closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall prepare their Financial Statements in
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Therefore, there financial statements have
been prepared under Companies Ordinance, 1984. : 1

1
The SBP through its BSD Circular no. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International
Accounting Standard (!AS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 44, 'Investment Property’ till further instructions, Further, according to the notification of the SECP
dated April 28, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' has not
been made applicable for companies engaged in housing finance services. Accordingly, the requirements of these
standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

e
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning op or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant
to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements dther
than certain additional disclosures: ]

Amendments/Interpretations : Effective date (accounting period
beginning on or after)

1AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - disclosure initiative (Amendments) January 1, 2017

IAS 12 "Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred tax assets

b 1,2017
for unrealized losses (Amendments) Ay

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

IAS 40 'Investment Property' - Clarification on transfers of property

J 1,2018
to or from investment property (Amendments) anuary

IFRS 2 'Share-Based Payment’ - Clarification of the classification

J 1,2018
and measurement of share-based payment transactions {Amendments) anuary

[FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance :
Consideration’ - Provides guidance on transactions where consideration
against non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is denominated
in foreign currency

January 1, 2016

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments™

Clarifies the accounting treatment in relation to determination of
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
under TAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

January 1, 2019 -

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of [FRSs and IASs.

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 (the new Companies Act) was enacted and promulgated by the SECP on
May 30, 2017. However, SECP has notified through Circular No. 23 of October 4, 2017 that companies whose
financial year closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, the Company shall prepare the financial
statements for periods closing after December 31, 2017 in accordance with the provisions of the new Companies Act.
The Company is currently in process of determining impact, if any, on future financial statements due to
implementation of the Act.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board
(TASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

Standards

- IFRS 1 'First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards'’
- TFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

- IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

- IFRS 16 'Leases'

2y
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Amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year

The following amendments are effective for the current year. These amendments are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure initiative (Amendments)

IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment and [AS 38 - Intangible Assets’ - Clarification
on acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization (Amendments)

1AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS 41 - Agriculture’ - Bringing bearer plants
in scope of IAS 16 {Amendments) :

IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Clarification that the same currency bonds be used to determine
the discount rate in which benefits are to be paid (Amendments)

IAS 27 (Revised 2011) 'Separate Financial Statements’ - Use of equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
in separate financial statements (Amendments)

IAS 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' - Clarification related to certain disclosures, i.e.
if they are not included in the notes to interim financial statements and disclosed elsewhere
should be cross referred (Amendments) '

IFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations' - Clarification
regarding changes in the method of disposal of an asset (Amendments)

IERS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures' - Disclosure requirements for servicing arrangements
on continuing involvement in transferred financial assets (Amendments)

IFRS 10 - 'Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 12 - 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ and
IAS 28 (Revised 2011) - '[nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Application of
consolidation exception (Amendments)

IFRS 11 - 'Joint Arrangements' - Accounting for acquisitions of an interest
in a joint operation (Amendments})

IFRS 13- Fair Value Measurement

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments classified
as held for trading and available-for-sale are measured at fair values, excluding investment in associate which is carried
using equity method and staff retirement benefit schemes that are stated at the present value of the obligation.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires managem@nt to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of ai;ssets,
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histotical experience and various other factors that are
helieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimatejs and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. i
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The areas where various assumptions and estimates were sigrliﬁcam to the Company’s financial statements or wﬂere
judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

a. Classification of investments

Held-for-trading

In classifying investments as "held-for-trading" the Company has determined securities which are acquired with%the
intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements. ‘

Held-to-maturity

In classifying investments as "held-to-maturity” the Company follows the guidance provided in SBP circularsf on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and having fixed maturity. In making
this judgment, the Company evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity. :

Available-for-sale
The investments which are not classified as "held for trading” or *held to maturity” are classified as “availablei for
¢. Provision against non-performing advances and investments

The Company regularly reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing advances, and proviision
required there-against. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in account, ﬁnax?cial '
position of the borrower, forced sale value and requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered. z

The Company determines that available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments are impaired when there has a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates among other factors, the normal volatilify in
market price (in case of listed securities). In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is eviden of
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology,| and
operational and financing cash flows.

d. Operating assets, residual value, depreciation and amortization

analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment
on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of
property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charged and impairment.

Estimates with respect to residual values, useful lives and pattem of flow of economic benefits are based O:E:he

¢. Employees retirement benefit plans

The liabilities for employees retirement benefits are determined as per actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit |
Method. The actuarial advice involves assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return: on assets, future
salary increases and future pension increases as disclosed in note 29. Changes in these assumptions in future year§ may
affect the liability / asset under these plans in future years.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. The financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.




4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies abplied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

4,1 Bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

It is carried in the balance sheet at cost and for the purpose of cash flow statement, it consist of cash in hand jand
balances with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and other banks in current and deposit accounts.

Cash in transit

Collection in transit as on the reporting date received from the bdrrowers / pariners at the branches is treated as cash in
transit and included in the bank balances,

4.2 Lending's to / borrowings from financial institutions

The Company enters into transactions of borrowings (repos) from and lending (reverse repos) to financial institutjons
at confracted rates for a specified period of time. These are recorded as under:

Sale under repurchase obligations

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue tq be
recognized in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies| for
investment securities. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is included in
borrowings from financial institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mprk-
up/return/interest expense and is accrued over the term of the related repo agreement.

Purchase under resale obligations

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are|not

recognized in the statement of financial position, as the Company does not obtain control over the securities. Amopnts
paid under these agreements are included in lending's to financial institutions. The difference between purchase jand
resale price is treated as mark-up/return/interest income and is accrued over the term of the related reverse fepo

Other lending's .

These are secured and unsecured lending's to financial institutions. These are stated net of provision. Mark-up on such
lending’s is charged to profit and loss account on time propottionate basis using effective interest rate method except
for mark-up on impaired/delinquent lending’s, which are recognized on receipt basis.

Other borrowings

These are recorded at the proceeds received. Mark-up on such borroWings is charged to the profit and loss account on
time proportion basis using effective interest method.

4.3 Revenue recognition

- Mark-up / return on regular advances, and investments and deposits is recognized on accrual time proportion basis.
9 Mark -up / return on classified advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis.

M




4.4

4.5
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- Mark-up income on Ghar Aasan Scheme is recognized on the basis of share in rental income and shate in

appreciation in value of property.

- Mark-up income on housing finance under Interest ering Scheme is not recognized since July, 2000 pursuant t
decision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

- Income from sale of houses under housing projects is recognized using stage of completion of contract.

b the

- Dividend income, except for dividend on investment in associate i.c. accounted for under equity method, is recognized

when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Gain/ loss on sale of investments are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Advances

Housing finance advance

Advances are stated net of general and specific provisions. The general and specific provisions are made in accordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations and other directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistans (SBP)

and are charged to the profit and loss account.

Non-performing advances are written off only when all possible courses of acticn to achieve recovery have proved

- unsuccessful. The Company determines write-offs in accordance with the criteria prescribed by the SBP.

Investments

Investments of the Company, other than investment in associate, are classified as held for trading, held-to-maturity and

available for sale.

Initial measurement

All “regular way” purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of investments that reguire

delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Investments are initially recognized at fair value ,which in the case of investments other than held-for-trading, incjudes

transaction costs associated with the investments.

Subsequent measurement

(a) Held-for-trading

These are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and losses on re-measurement are included in the

profit and loss account.

{b) Held-to-maturity

These are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognized to

reflect irrecoverable amounts.




4.6
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(c) Available-for-sale

Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept in a separate account as shown in the statement of financial position b

Quoted-securities classified as available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.
equity and charged to the profit and loss account when actually realized upon disposal or when the investme

considered to be impaired.

low
t is

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. A decline in the carrying valye is
charged to the profit and loss account. The break-up value of these equity securities is calculated with reference tg the

net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in
unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses.

other

Provision for diminution in the value of securities (éxcept term finance certificates and sukuks) is made| for
impairment, if any. Provision for diminution in the value of tenm finance certificates is made as per the aging criferia

prescribed by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

(d) Investment in associate

Investment in associate, where the company has significant influence, is accounted for using equity methofl of
accounting wherein the Company's share of underlying net assets of the investee company is recognized as the carmying

amount of such investment. Differences between the amount previously recognized and the amount calculated at

pach

year end is recognized in the profit and loss account as share of profit or loss of associate. Any distribution received

out of such profits is credited to the carrying amount of investment in associated undertaking,

Gains and losses on disposal of investments are dealt with through the profit and loss account in the year in which they

arise.

The carrying values of investments are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Where any such indicg’ons

exist that the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, provision for impairment is made throu
profit and loss account.

Operating fixed assets

Property and equipment

the

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Copt of
property and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection /. construction perigd of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. When parts of an|item
of property and equipment have different useful lives, they arc accounted for as separate items of property| and

equipment.

Depreciation on property and equipment is charged to income using the 'Straight Line Method' over the useful life of
the asset at the rates mentioned in note 10.2. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reported date. Depreciation charge commences from the month when the as
available for use and continues till the month the asset is discontinued either through disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost ¢
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account )

Any gain or loss on disposal of the assets is included in the profit and loss account in the year of disposal.

set is

only
f the
when




4.7

Y

Intangibles

Intangible assets having finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets comprise of cost of computer software and patents, which are amortized using the 'Straight Line
Method' over their useful lives as stated in note 10.3 Amortization is charged from the month of acquisition and up to
the month of deletion. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each

reporting date.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expensé when incurred.

Capital work-in-pragress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date and represents expenditure incurred on

property and equipment in the course of construction / development. These expenditure are transferred to rele
category of property and equipment as and when the assets become available for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

vant

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If such indication exists,

where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverrble

amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and vaiue in use. The resu
impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to detemine

the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amo

and

ting

tof

the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such

reversal is recognized in profit and loss account.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Incdme tax expense is recognized in the profit and

account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current

loss

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of tax after taking into account applicable
tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where

considered necessary, relating to prior years arising from assessments made during the year.

Deferred

Defetred tax is recognized using the liability method on ail temporary differences, at the reporting date between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is calcylated
at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates that have

been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets is recognize
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized.

d to

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reported date and reduced to the extent that it [is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow whole or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to

equity, if any, in that case it is included in equity.




48 Employee benefits

a. Defined benefit plan
Pension Fund

The Company operates an apprbved funded pension scheme for all its employees who have been in full time
employment for at least 10 years. The scheme provides pension based on the employees’ last drawn pensionable salary.
Contributions are made to the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendation.

Post retirement medical béneﬁts
The Company provides post retirement medical facility to an employee in the following events:

- Retirement
- Early retirement from service
- Death/disability during or after service

The Company's post retirement medical benefits' structure is as follows:

Executives / officers their spouse and dependent children Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test etc. : One gross pension

- for cost of medicine One gross pension
Clerical staff ' Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test etc. One gross pension

- for cost of medicine Two gross pension
Non-clerical staff Entitlement

- for hospitalization : One and half gross pension
- for consultation/pathological test etc. One and half gross pension
- for cost of medicine Three gross pension

The actuarial gains / losses on re-measurement of defined benefit obligations are recognized in the pther
comprehensive income.

b, Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates an approved non-contributory Provident Fund scheme for all its employees. Contrib:tions
are made to the Fund by the employees at the rate of 12% of their basic salaries in accordance with the Fund’s rules.

¢. Employees’ compensated absences

Employees of the Company are entitled to carry forward and accumulate their unveiled leaves. The rules of the Jeave
encashment scheme state that the employee shall be entitled to get 50% of his balance subject to maximum of 180|days
ie. he is allowed to accumulate his balance upto 365 days. The employees can avail their leave balance in excdss of
. 365 days at any time as the excess balance will not be encashed at retirement and will be lapsed. The Corjpany_
provides for employees compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation in accordance with the requirements
of TAS-19. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is camried out every year and the latest valuation was carried qut at
December 31, 2016. :

op




d. Accounting policy - defined 'beﬁeﬁ? plan

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the periods in which they ogcur.
Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on
settlements, and net interest income-(expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit obligation are recogniized
directly in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit and loss account.

4.9 Foreign currency transactions and translations

prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Pakistani Rupee
applying the exchange rate at the date of respective transactions. Gains and losses on translation are included in profit
and loss account currently.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into Rupees at the applicable rate of esz:Ee

4.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, lendings to
financial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, borrowings from financial institutions, deposits and
certain other liabilities. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant financial assets and finapcial
liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with them. Financial assets are de-recognized
when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is transferred along with the risk and rew. of
the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancellgd or
expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is recognized in the profit and) loss
account of the current period. ‘

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements then
there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Company intends cither to settle on p net
basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and
liabilities are also off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements. '

4.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.12  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specific to a significant addition ofa project during its construction / erection period is capital ized.
Other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

4.13  Earnings per share

loss, as the case may be, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the pl%l‘t or

4.14  Dividends and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the year in which these are approved, except approprigtions
required by the law, which are recorded in the period to which they pertain.

A




4.15
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5.2

6.1

6.2

71

Demand charges
Demand charges {penalties) on late payment by the partners are credited to 'Deferred Credit' account. This amount is
utilized for charity purposes after netting of recovery charges as approved by the Board.
2017 2016
Note (Rupees in ‘000) ——-
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
State Bank of Pakistan
Local currency current account 5.1 53,462 121,300
National Bank of Pakistan _
Local currency deposit account 5.2 ' 69 78
53,531 121,378
This represents the amount required to be maintained by the Company in accordance with the SBP's regulations.
The bank account carry mark-up at rate 3.75% (2016: 4%) per annum.
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
Local currency deposit accounts 6.1 271,582 400310 -
Local currency term deposit receipt 62 500,000 2504000
771,582 650(310
These bank accounts carry mark-up at rate ranging from 4% to 5.6% (2016: 4% to 6%) per annum.
These term deposit receipts carry mark-up at rate 6.50% (2016:6.50%) per annum and will be mature in 31 days.
2017 2016
Note (Rupees in ‘000) ——
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Letters of placement 7.1 300,000 -
Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo) 7.2 551,542 400,188
851,542 400,188
Letters of placement
Pak Oman Investment Bank Limited (POIBL) 7.1.1 100,000 -
Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited (PBICL) 7.1.2 100,000 -
PAIR Investment Company Limited (PICL) 7.13 100,000 -
Trust Investment Bank Limited (TIBL) 7.14 5,909 3,909
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited (FDIBL) 7.1.5 56,266 57,381
362,175 63,290
Less; Provision against letters of placement 7.1.6 (62,175) {63,290)
M 300,000 -




7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

71.4

7.1.5

7.1.6

7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

This represents the clean placement made on December 15, 2017 for a period of 90 days at the mark-up rate of
6.15% per annum. al

This represents the clean placement made on December 15, 2017 for a period of 90 days at the mark-up rate of 6.1 0%
per annum

This represents the clean placement made on November 22, 2017 for a period of 56 days at the mark-up rate of
6.10% per annum

This represents clean placement made on November 17, 2008 for a period of 14 days at the mark-up rate of 28% per
annum. The transaction remained unsettled at maturity and rescheduling has been made twice. Mark-up accrued
February 15, 2012 has been received. The Company filed a suit in the Banking Court for the recovery of ou
principal along with mark-up. The Banking Court decreed the case in favor of the Company on October 12,
Execution application has been filed by the Company with notice issued to TIBL for attachment of assets of TIBL.
However, on prudent basis, Company has maintained 100% provision against outstanding receivable.

This represents clean placement made on September 12, 2008 for a period of 94 days at the mark-up rate of 17%
annum. The transaction remained unsettled at maturity and consequently the Company filed a suit in the Sindh H
Court for the recovery of outstanding principal. However, the Company on prudent basis has maintained 1
provision against outstanding receivable amount in its books of accounts. The SHC decreed the case in favor

Company on November 05, 2010. FDIBL has filed an appeal against the judgement of SHC in the Supreme Court of
Pakistan, and the decision is pending. During the year, a sum of Rs. 1.114 million has been recovered.
2017 2016

Note ——— (Rupees in “000) ——
Particulars of provision
Opening balance 63,290 80,909
Provision made during the year : - -
Provision reversed during the year (1,114) (17,619)
Closing balance : 62,175 63,290
Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo)
Pair Investment Company Limited 300,840 -
Pak Libya Holding Company (Pvt) Limited 250,702 -
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited - '400/188

7.2.2 551,542 400]188
Particulars of lendings
In local currency 551,542 400188
This reverse repo carry mark-up at rate of 6.03% per annum.
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8.2

8.2.1

3.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.3.1

8.2.3.2

Investments by segments

Government securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Unlisted Company

Term finance certificates, debentures,
bonds and participation term certificates
Unlisted Sukuk Bonds

Other investments
Term Deposit Receipts
Certificates of Investment

Investment in an associate
Takaful Pakistan Limited (TPL)

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment
Investments (net of provisions)

Surplus/{deficit) on remeasurement of available-for-sale securities
Total investments

These carry yield at rates ranging from 5.99% to 6.039% (2016: 5.79 % to 6.19%).

Note

8.2.1
822

8.2.3

83

84
8.5

8.7.1

3.8

15.

These carry mark-up (coupon rate) at rates ranging from 8.75% to 9.25% (2016: 8.75% to 9.25%).

Unlisted ordinary shares

Resource and Engineering Management Corporation Limited
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited

This represent investment in 66,125 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each in Resource and Engineering Managpment!

Note

8231
8232

Corporation Limited. Full provision has been made against this investment.

2017 2016
. (Rupees in ‘000) ——{—
6,124,240 6,485,165
302,839 307,083
7,175 500
26,240 26,240 |
2,344 2344
45,000 67,500
51,241 50,478
6,559,079 6,939,310
(71,740) (96,584)
6,487,339 6,842,726
2,174 (1,686)
6,489,513 6,841,040
2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) ——
500 - 500
6,675 Po-
7,178 500 |

This represents payment made for ordinary shares subscription against commitment to take shares for Rs. 200 rtuliton
of newly formed Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited. 667,500 shares transferred to the Company on

February 13, 2017. The investment is carried at cost.




8.3

8.3.1

8.4

8.5

8.6

2

Particulars of investment in sukuk bonds

Name of issuer I Note | Rating I - Mark-up rate I Total nominal value ‘
2017 2016
-—-— (Rupees in ‘000) --——-

Eden Housing Limited (EH 8.3.1 Unrated 3 months KIBOR plus 3% 26,240 26,240

40,000 certificates |

Outstanding face value:

Rs. 656 each

Maturity date: June 29, 2014

Chief Executive Officer:

Mr. Muhammad Amjad

As per the original terms of repayment, these sukuk bonds were to be repaid in eight equal semi-annual instaih'jhents
starting from June 2009 till December 2012 along with mark-up of six months KIBOR plus 2.50%. i

Eden Housing Limited (EHL) paid two installments of Rs. 25 million each and then defaunited the repayment. On; June
30, 2010, EHL entered into a restructuring arrangement according to which outstanding principal of Rs. 150 million
to be repaid on quarterly basis along with mark-up of KIBOR plus 2.5% and 3% for the first three years and fourth
year, respectively. EHL defaulted for the two coupon mark-up due on March 29, 2014 and June 6, 2014 of Rs. 1_3.120
million each. However, on prudent basis, the Company has maintained full provision of the outstanding principal
amount. ‘ :

This represents investment in term deposit receipts (TDRs) of Asset Investment Bank Limited (AIBL) for Rs 19

million on Sept 9, 1996 for one year. Up till May 20, 1999 AIBL have paid Rs. 7.656 million and remaining priljci_pal
amount of Rs. 2.344 million is outstanding. Hence in January 2002, recovery suit was filed in Banking Court Karachi.
Full provision had been made against these TDRs in previous years. However, subsequent to year end on January 18,

2018, the company has received 41,591 shares of MCB @ Rs 229.46 which amounts to 9.603 million. It includes the

principal amount of Rs 2.344 miltion and mark up of Rs 7.259 million. Therefore, the provision has been reverséd.

This represents investment in certificates of investment (COls) of Rs. 200 million for three years and Rs. 25 miillion
for three months in 1996 and 1998 respectively. Bankers Equity Limited (BEL) defaulted the repayment andi went
under liquidation on April 18, 2001, hence claims of BEL were placed before Sindh High Court (SHC). Howevé;r, the
Company on prudent basis had maintained 100% provision against outstanding principal amount. The Compaz;ty_has
received Rs. 22.5 million during the year where as a cumulative sum of Rs. 180 million (80%) has been redeived
uptill December 31, 2017 against invested amount, on the directive of SHC. ' :

2017 2016 ,
— (Rupees in “000) -— — (Rupees in *000) —
Amount _ Rating Amount Rating
Quality of available-for-sale securities - -
(at market value)
Market Treasury Bills 6,123,234 Sovereign 6,478,964 Soverejgn
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 306,019 Sovereign 311,598 Soverelgn-
Unlisted Ordinary Shares :
Resource and Engineering Management i
Corporation Limited (fully provided) - Unrated - Unraqf:d
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company - Unrated
6,429,253 6,790,562




8.7

8.7.1

8.8

8.9

YA

Investment in an associate - Takaful Pakistan Limited

Place of incorporation Pakistan
Principal business Takaful

Number of shares held

Cost of investment - Rupees in '000
Assets - Rupees in ‘000

Liabilities - Rupees in '000

Net contribution revenue - Rupees in '000
Profit after tax - Rupees in '000
Percentage of investment

Break up value per share - Rupees
Eamings per share - basic and diluted
Latest available financial statements

Name of Chief Executive

Carrying value of investment in an associate under equity method

Carrying value of investment at beginning of the year
Share of profit before taxation from an associate
Share of taxation from associate

Carrying value of investment at end of the year

Particulars of provision

Balance at beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Reversal during the year
Balance at end of the year

Particulars of provision in respect of types and segment

Available-for-sale securities

Unlisted ordinary shares - Resource and Engincering
Management Corporation Limited

Held-to-maturity securities

Unlisted sukuks bonds - Eden Housing Limited
Term deposit receipts - Asset Investment Bank Limited
Certificates of investment - Bankers Equity Limited

2017 2016
—- (Rupees in ‘000) —~ |
8,699,500 8,699,500
87,000 87,000
436,118 559313
239,818 379,5278
137,693 239,063
2,633 21198
29% 29%
6.54 5.00
0.09 .71
Dec 31,2017  Dec 31,2016

Dr. Syed Tariq Dr. Syed 'i'anq
Husain (CEQ)  Husain (CfEO)

2016

2017
-— (Rupees in ‘000) — -
50,478 44,331
1,430 6,986
(667). (839)
51,241 50,478
96,584 96,584
(24,844) -
71,740 96,584
500 . 500
26,240 26,240
- 2,344
45,000 67,500
71,740 96,584




9.1

9.2

2.3

9.4

244

2017 2016 |

ADVANCES - NET ' Note --- (Rupees in ‘000) — |
In Pakistan - local currency . .
Rental Sharing Schemes 92 1,576,963 1,648,634
Interest Bearing Schemes 93 103,714 106913
Ghar Aasan Scheme 94 2,468,170 3,093,853
Gwadar Employees Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) 9.5 11,268 11,369
Shandar Ghar Scheme 9.6 480,286 547132 |
Uneamed income (288,614 (319,564)
191,672 227,568
Firancing facility for Small Builders 9.7 1,990 2,207
Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme 0.8 10,065,232 10,326,665
Bisma & Saima Projects 9.9 40,944 50,443
New Small Builders Scheme ' 9.10 60,255 86,875
Housing finance to employees 9.11 337,003 447,253
Partners' death claims 9.12 - (110,199)
Transitory district bank accounts - net 9.13 45,043 33;,707
Advances - gross 14,902,254 15,925,288
Provision for non-performing advances
Specific provision i
Rental Sharing Schemes 9.2 1,509,898 1,608,105
Interest Bearing Schemes ' : 93 103,714 106,913
Ghar Aasan Scheme 94 956,865 1,443,525
Gwadar Employees Co-operative Housing Society 9.5 11,268 11,369
Shandar Ghar Scheme 9.6 159,915 183,323
Financing facility for Small Builders ' 9.7 1,990 2,207
Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme 9.8 567,690 598,478
Housing finance to employees 9.11 5,550 3,550
3,316,890 3,959,470
General provision 9.14 135,967 148,889
- (3,452,857) {4,108,359)

Advances - net of provision 11,449,397 11,816,929

Particulars of advances (gross)

Short term (up to one year) : 3,146,503 3,153,074

Long term (over one year) 11,755,751 12,772,214
14,902,254 15,925,288

This represents advances under Profit & Loss Sharing Scheme, Simplified Scheme, New Simplified Scheme (N§S),
Gothabad Scheme and loan to Precast Industries (Pvt.) Limited. No additional disbursement of advance under these
schemes has been made since 2000, Advances under NSS have been provided upto 93% (December 31, 2016: 98%)
of the gross advance whereas advances under rest of the schemes are fully provided.

No new disbursement has been made under this scheme since the year 1979. In pursuance to the decision off the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has not accrued interest on these advances since July 01, 2000,
All advances under this category have been classified as "Loss" and fully provided. :

This scheme was based on Diminishing Musharaka for construction, purchase of houses and replacement of existing
housing advance obtained by applicants from ancther financial institutions - Balance Transfer Facility (BTF) with
maximum financing limit of Rs. 7.5 million. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 to 240 monthly
installments. The net annual rental income is 5% of the total assessed cost of the :




9.5

2.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

el

house, subject to upward revision of annual rent on cumulative basis at 25% after every 3 years. For disbursements
after May 26, 2008, constant net annual rental income of 15.5% is charged on daily product basis on the value jof
outstanding units. In addition, the Company shares appreciation in the value of the house at rates ranging between
2.5% to 12.5% per annum assessed for various localities. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued
from February 11, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations. ;

During the year management has introduced the Ghar Asaan Incentive Scheme after approval of the Board ‘of
Directors (BoD) in their meeting held on May 02, 2017. Under the scheme ,appreciation rate, as explained above,
was replaced with fixed rental charge at the rate of 10% with equal monthly instalments since from inception; of
advance. Under the scheme, customers who have opted the facility may settle/regularise their advances after
payment of due amounts based on revised terms. The scheme was initially offered uptilt 30 September 2017 which
has been extended to June 30, 2018 by BoD. Out of 20,000 customers, 2,203 customers have availed the scheme out
of which 1,318 customers have settled their advances and 885 customers have regularised their advances. :

As per the arrangement Gwadar Employees' Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) is required to adjust the
principal amount of advance of Rs. 47.50 million within thirty three months from December 26, 2006 through
transfer of balance in each individual case of the allottees of house under Ghar Aasan Scheme and under Ghar Aasan
Flexi Scheme after completion and handing over possession of houses. Until the transfer of advances to individuﬁ_is,
GECHS shall pay profit @ 13% per annum. Upto December 31, 2017, advances of Rs.Nil (2016: 36.1 ‘miltion) were
transferred to individual cases. o

Final profit and loss sharing will be subject to final settlement of accounts which shall be made within three months
of the completion of the project which will be audited by the person authorized by the Company. The advance is
secured against mortgage of land. However, the Company has made provision of full amount on prudent basis.

Advances under Shandar Ghar Scheme for renovation of houses only with maximum financing limit of R§. 2.5
million are based on Murabaha approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2004 . The advance is repayable
by the partners in 12 to 120 monthly installments. The Murahaba profit varies from 8% to 13.5% (2016: $% to
13.5%) per annum. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February 11, 2009. Provision
has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations. :

Advances under 'Finance facility for Smal! Builders' for construction of individual houses and apartments for sale to
the general public with maximum financing limit of Rs. 7.5 million is based on Musharaka financing approved byithe
Board of Directors in August 2007. This advance is for a period of 12 to 18 months, extendable for further 3 months,
1o be repaid at the end of the tenure along with the profit ranging from 13% to 18% (2016 : 13% to 18%) per annum,
or is transferable to the buyer of the house/apartment under Ghar Aasan Scheme. New disbursement under this

scheme has been discontinued from November 17, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the pmde_ﬁtial

Advances under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme for construction, renovation and purchase of house and replacement of
existing housing facility — Balance Transfer Facilities (BTF) with maximum financing limit of Rs.10 million is based
on Diminishing Musharaka. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 to 240 monthly installments. The rentai
income for salaried person and business person is one year KIBOR with a spread of 3.25% and 3.5% (2016: 3.25%
and 3.5%) respectively per annum. o

There are two installment plans under this scheme; variable installment plan and fixed investment plan.z New
disbursement under variable instaliment plan has been discontinued effective from July 27, 2009. Provision has been
made in accordance with the prudential regulations. :

Advances under ‘Bisma and Saima Project’ for construction of individual houses and apartments with maxinum
financing limit of Rs. 10 million is based on Musharaka financing. This advance is for a period 12 to 18 months and
profit is calculated on the basis of 2 years fixed KIBOR rate. The payment of instaliments is commenced from the
next month of the completion of construction of houses and apartments. Provision has been made in accordance with
the prudential regulations. '
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9.16.2

9.16.3

9.17

9.18

o

Non-performing advances are classified and disclosed in substandard, doubtful and loss category based on nul.nbier of
installments outstanding from the customers. The management is of the view that this is the appropriate methad for
ascertaining classification of advances. : :

The SBP vide BSD Circular no. 10 of 2009 dated October 20, 2009 had allowed banks/DFIs to avail benefit of forced sal
value of collaterals mortgaged with them while determining provisioning requirement against non-performing financing.
Further, SBP vide BSD Circular no.1 of 2011 dated October 21, 2011 made certain amendments in the Prudential Regulatio:

for Consumer Financing with respect to allowing additional benefit of forced sales value (FSV) of mortgage properties held

collateral against housing finances. According to the said circular, the impact on profitability due to availing FSV benefit s
not be available for payment of cash dividend or stock dividend. As at December 31, 2017, had FSV benefit of ITH&SMEF]
Circular no. 03 of 2017 not been taken, profit for the year before taxation would have been increased by Rs. 272,748 millio
respectively.

=

Particulars of loan / advances to employees

Debts due by employees of the Company, or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons:

2017 2016
— (Rupees in ‘000) —
Balance at beginning of the year 7 549,328 614,353
Granted during the year 36,193 80,872
Repaid during the year ' (190,635) {145,897)
Balance at end of the year 394,886 549,328

There were no debts given to any companies or firms in which the directors of the Company are interested as directors pr
partners respectively, or in case of private companies, members during the year.




10.

10.1

10.1.2

10.2

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Propetty and equipment
Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works

Property and equipment

Y ear ended December 31, 2017

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposals

Cost
Depreciation

Deprecistion charge

Closing net book vaiue
As at December 31, 2017
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net bock vatue

Annual rate of depreciation (%)

Y ear ended December 31, 2016

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Depreciation
A.djustments in

- cost*

) iation®
Depreciation charge
Closing net book value

A5 st December 31, 2016
Cost
Avccumulated depreciation

) _ WT.. . 2016
Note- = {Rupees ia 000) ——
0.1 45719 225
102 287,449 3IH4.21B
0.3 687 . 1Lo1B
192,715 315460
10.4.2 4579 - 225
This mmmmﬁmmummmmdoﬁumw
Frechold land  Leasehald Office Fumnitareand  Electrical Office Compater Motor Total
tand premises Gixtures - installath quip quif hiel
(Rupees in '000)
6,015 3,673 257,604 15462 4,605 9,922 8,782 6,095 E 3 14,21:
- - 1,938 - 57 1,114 1,671 - C 4T
{60) @7 (£,121) {5,007} (3.41) (94:26)
26 27 968 5,006 3441 - 3448
- - G4 - - (153) (n - (133)
- - {15,373) (5,048) (1,780) (2.326) 4,313 (1611) (31361
6,075 5673 244,135 9,514 2382 8,557 6129 4484 - 287449
6,075 5,673 357,525 82,766 42,640 54,482 102,015 54,720 705956
: - {113,390) (73.252) (39,758) (45,925) (95,886) (50,296) (418,507)
6,075 5,673 244,135 9,514 2,882 8,557 6,129 4484 287 449
- 5 10 10 15 - 33.33 33.33 20
Freeholdland  Frechold land Office F and Electrical Office Computer Moter Total
premises fixtures instaltations quip quig vehicles s
Frechold land
5,702 5,938 306,037 © 22909 6519 7,106 60 4,999 359,470
- - - 200 - 5483 10,416 2824 © 18923
{154) - (1,691) an - (83) (275) an9lt 5439
- - 524 17 - 83 213 3,219 4 456
(154) - (1,167} - - - 62) - (1,383
527 (2653 (31,833) - . ®) 1,093 115 (30,369
- - (1810 (12) 1 228 112 {147 (1,6428)
527 (265) (31.643) (2 1 222 1,205 32) G197
- - (13,623) (7.635) (1,915} (2,889) (2,837 (1.695) (30,395)
6,075 5,673 257,604 15,462 4,605 9922 8,782 6,005 34,318
6,705 5,673 355,647 82,793 43,583 54,489 105,351 58221 . T10.832
- - (98,043) (67,331) (37,978) (44,567) {96.569) (52.126) (396,414
6,705 5.673 257,604 15462 4,605 9922 8782 6,005 - 314,218

Net book value

Ve
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0.3 Intangible assets

can be utilized.

Note
12, OTHER ASSETS

Mark-up income accrued in local currency
Advances
Investments
Advance taxation (payments less provision)
Other advances, deposiis and prepayments
Advance against purchase of land - housing projects _ 12.1
Other receivable against advances
Advance against shares subscription 122
Assets acquired from Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation
Finance Corporatios (PRRFC) 124

Less: Provision held against other assets 12.3

on prudent basis, has made full provision against this amount.

February 13, 2017. Accordingly these have been recognized as investment (note 8.2.3).

74

l 1

2017
Cost Amortization
Opening Additions/ Closing  Opening Amortization/ Closing Book value
Balaace {Deletions)/ Balance Balgnce Impairment  Balance at closing
Rupees in 000
Computer Software 5,257 - 5257 4,601 327 4,928 329
Others 3459 - 3,459 3,097 ) 4 3,101 358
8,716 8,716 7,698 -331 8,029 687
2016
Cost Amortization
Opcning Additions/ Closing  Opemiug  Amortization/ Closing Book valoe
Balaace {Deletions)/ Balance Balance Impairment  Balance at closing
Rupees in 060
Computer Software 4,402 855 5,257 4,263 338 4,601 656
Others 3459 - 3,459 3,056 41 3,097 362
7,261 855 8,716 1319 379 7698 1018
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

11.1 Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 2,035 miltion (2016: Rs. 2,018 million) has not been recognized as the management belid\rcs lI:t
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available in the foreseeable future against which these deductible temporary differences

Rate of
amorﬁnl:ion %l

33.33%
33.33%
Rateiof

amortizatios %

3339%
33.33%

2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) —-—
39,889 35,063
9,593 7,247

219,350 549,334
135,736 142,001
53,815 53,815
17,225 20,835

. 6,605
475,608 814,980
(53,815) (53,815)
421,793 761,1/65

12.1 This represents an advance payment of 32% of the purchase cost made in 2007 for the purchase cost of two picces of land m ing
163 acres situated in Gwadar, Remaining cost of 68% has been shown as commitment. The Company intend 1o construct low gost
houses on this land to promote affordable housing facilities to low income groups of the residents of Gwadar, Due to disagreement on
the price, management is in the process of negotiating purchase at revised value. Pending possession of the property, the management

12.2 This represents payment made for ordinary shares subscription against commitment to take shares for Rs. 200 miilion bf newly
formed Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited. During the year, 667,500 sharcs were transferred to the Company on




017 2016
(Rupees in *000) ———

12.3 Particulars of provision against other asse(s

Balance at beginning of the year 53,815 50,470
Charge for the year - 3,345
Batance at end of the year 53,815 53,815

124 As directed vide SRO 499(1)/80 dated May 13, 1980 by Finance Division - Government of Paklstan, the Company (formerly HBFC)
took over assets and liabilities of PRRFC. Further, as per the directive of the Government of Pakistan all assets and liabilities dre
shown distinctively as below, however the Company does not have any control over these assets and liabilities. Acoordmgly, thm i:e
not recorded in the books of account.

2017 2016
: (Rupees in “‘000) ——
Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation Finance Company assets :
Assets
Fixed assets 1 i
Cash and bank balances 518 318 |
Investments ' 253 233
Loans and advances 16,583 : 16,583
Inter-centre adjustment 2,432 2,432
Other receivables . 1,992 £.992
Sundry debtors 200 .2
Advances, deposits and prepayments ' 227 212
' 22,206 22,206
Provision for doubtful debts (2,579 {2,579)
o 19,627 19,627
Liabilities
Sundry creditors ' 93 93
" Accrued expenses as 18
Retumn on capital : 7,371 7,371
Other liabilities _ 129 iz9
7,631 7,631
Net assets 11,996 11,996

WA~




13.

13.1

13.2

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up expense accrued in local currency
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP)

Retirement and other service benefits

Payable against voluntary retirement schemes

Deferred credits

Accrued expenses

Insurance premium

Advance rent reccived

Refundable to customers against advances

Security deposits

Application fee - Gwadar Project

Retention money

Reimbursement of claims by Government of Pakistan

Agents' deposit money

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Others

Mark-up expense accrued in local currency

Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP)

Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Mark-up accrued on SBP credit lines

Less: Transferred to "conversion of liabilities into -
share capital” account

Less: Paid in cash
Balance at end of the year

Deferred credits

Balance at beginning of the year
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses
Profit received on investment from deferred credits

Balance at end of the year

My

Note

13.1
29.

13.2

13.3

13.2.1

2016

2017
(Rupees in “000) —
3,422,777 4,181,75
- 517,64
1,711,542 1,699,71
38,501 66,
53,952 58,06
5,600 39,2
12,781 8,16
5,600 5,
3872 3,8
596 1,
579
185
41,016 -
3,970 5,168
5,300,971 6,587,439
59 4,053,741
- 1,068,019
59 5,121,740
- (5,121,701)
(59)
- 59
1,699,717 . 1,596,859
11,825 23,4D4
- 79,364
1,711,542 1,699,717




l 13.2.1
l 13.2.2
13.2.3
. 13.2.4
13.2.5
13.2.6

2017 2016
Note «-— (Rupees ia ‘000) —-——-
Deferred credit balance at end of the year comprises of:
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses 13.22&1323 592,237 - 580,412
Profit/commission received from State Life Insurance
Corporation - net of death claims ' 13.2.4 208,562 208,563
Provision against insurance receivable from partners o (260,817) (260,81
' (52,255) (52,25%)
Unidentifiable insurance premium contribution reccived :
from borrowers / partners during prior years 13.2.5 52,503 | 52,503
Property insurance _ (12,495)] (12,493)
40,008 40,008
Income from investments from deferred credit balance 13.2.6 1,236,552 . 1,236,552
1,816,542 1,804,717
Donations 13.2.7 (105,800) {105,000)
1,711,542 1,699,717
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses
Demand charges recovered 699,237 687,412
Less: Recovery charges paid
Balance at beginning of the year {107,000) (107,384)
During the year _ - 384 |
(107,000) (107,000}
Balance at end of the year ' 592,237 580,412

This represents demand charges recovered after June 30, 2000 net of recovery expenses, transferred to this account in ac
with the requirement of section 24(20)(d) of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC) Act, 1952 as amended by the HBFC
{Amendment) Ordinance, 2001. The Board of Directors has approved that this amount will be used for meeting direct recov
expenses. The Company requested the SBP to provide approval for change in accounting treatment vide letter no. HBFC/HOK/2
dated August 2016. In response, the SBP vide its letter no. BPRD/BRP/2017-7658 dated March 29, 2017 did not grant the appro
for change in accounting treatment. Accordingly, the deferred credit balance has been stated as it is in last year.

16
al

According to the agreement with SLIC, death claims lodged after the profit / commission distribution will be adjusted by the
Company through profit / commission charged to deferred credit account.

This represents amount received in prior years’” on account of Group Insurance Premium from individual borrowers / partners|on
account of rate differences. As at December 31, 2000 these amounts were pending allocation to individual partners / borrowers. Due
to non-availability of the relevant records, these amounts have been transferred to this account after approval of thé Board of
Directors of the Company and will be used for relicf of widows, orphans and incapacitated partners which are not covered by any
other relief package or group insurance policy.

This represents income from investments allocation against the income earned up to the current year by the Company in respect ofjthe
items reflected in the deferred credit account using average yield.




13.2.7 In 2012 donation of Rs. 2.5 million were paid to IBA Endowment Fund, in 2011 Rs. 2.5 mil

Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) and in 2010, Rs. 100 million were donated to Prime Minister Flood Relief Fund.

133 Monthly insurance premium is payable to State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLI

dues from the partners in case of their death or total disablement and insurance premium pay
insuranc:

14. SHARE CAPITAL

14.1 Authorized Capital

2017 2016
Numntber of Shares
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs, 10/~ each

14.2 Issued, subscribed a Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

6 6
300,000,000 300,000,000
100,000 100,000

1,636,400,000 -
1,936,500,006 300,100,006
187,562,506 187,562,506
1,748,937,500 112,537,500
1,936,500,006 300,100,006

142.1 The
Rs. 11,242 million along with outstanding raark-
Company at par value (Rs. 10 per share) . Shareholders' also appro
2017. During the period, the amount have been converted into ordinary share capital.

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each:

- Fully paid in cash

- Issued for consideration other than cash
- Shares issued for consideration in cash

Issue of ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
-against cash

Pattetn of share holdings:
- Federal Government
- State Bank of Pakistan

Note

1421

lion was paid to Sindh Institute g

CP) against the insurance of outstand
able to Takaful Pakistan Limited 2, ::E
e of mortgage property. The amount of these premiums are recoverable from partners in their monthly installments.

—r,

2017 2016
(Rupees in *000) ——
20,900,004 20,000,000
Rupees in 000
3,000,000 3,000,
1,080 L
16,364,000 -
19,365,000 3,001,000
1,875,615 1,875.6p5
17,489,375 1,125 375
19,365,000 3,001,000

MoF vide its letter no. F.No.1(3) IF-1/2016-1122 dated January 09, 2017 has approved the conversion of the SBP Credit Lines of

15. SURPLUS ADEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Martket Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

2l

up of Rs. 5,122 million upto December 31, 2016 into ordinary shares of the
ved the same in its Annual General Meeting held on March 31,

2017 2016
{Rupees in *000) -——
(1,006) (6,2p1)
3,180 4515
2174 (1,686)




16.

16.1

16.1.1 .

16.1.2

16.2

A

2017 2016
Note (Rupees in “000) ——

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Confingencies
Claims not acknowledged as debt
SMS Courier (Pvt} Limited (SMSCPL) 16.1.1 39,890 39,894
Liaquat National Hospital . 16.1.2 8,100 8,104

- 47,990 47,990

In the year 1995, the Company entered into an agreement with SMS Courier (Pvt) Limited (SMSCPL), a courier service company.
Subsequently, due to unsatisfactory service, the Company terminated the agreement with SMSCPL. SMSCPL claimed indemnity ¢f
toss for Rs. 39.89 million and filed a suit for recovery from the Company which is pending for adjudication in Honorable Sindh Hi;h
Court. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion that no economic outflow is expected in this respect.

In the year 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Liaquat National Hospita! (LNH) in Karachi for providing medical
facilities/treatments to employees of the Company and their dependents. LNH lodged a claim of Rs. 8.1 million against the Co Yy
which include bills of the individuals who were not referred by the Company to LNH, as these were neither the Company’s employ

nor their dependents. Currently, the case is pending for adjudication in Honorable Sindh High Court. The legai advisor of the
Company is of the opinion that no economic outflow is expected. '

For tax éontingency refer note 25.2

2017 2016
Note (Rupees in *000) ——
Commitments
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed ' 140,435 372,545
Equity investment to be made in
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited 12.2 193,315 193,325
Land to be purchased for Gwadar Housing Projects 12.1 149,725 146,355
Land to be purchased for Gwadar Office 9,750 9,750
Contruction to be made on building in Lahore - 2,025
Model Town Lahore Project 29,490 -
Hyderabad Project 5,308 -
Peshawar Office Building Project 10,485 -
Other Commitments 1,578
Rental to be due under lease agreements in respect of vehicles -
252

Not later than one year -
Later than one year but not later than five years - 4




17.

17.1

17.2

18.

18.1

19.

19.2

19.3

2017 12016

RENTAL/MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST INCOME Note (Rapees in ‘008) —----
On advance to:

Customers 17.1 1,823,950 2,108,532

Employees 11,274 7,382
On investment in securitics:

Available-for-sale 17.2 399,675 458,266

Held-to-maturity - 218
On lending to financial institutions: '

Letters of placement 5,573 1,912

Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo) 12,963 17,139
On bank balances 15,121 13,402

' 2,268,561 2,606,851

It includes recovery of Pakistan Housing Authority (PHA) balance amounting to Rs. 218.1 million.

The Ministry of Finance (MoF) paid Rs. 44 million and Rs. 174.1 million to the Company during 2009 and 2010 respectively agai

outstanding amount of advance to PHA as the transaction was guaranteed by the Federal Government. However, the MoF through i
letter No. F.10(4)IF-11/2000-594 dated April 17, 2010 instructed the Ministry of Housing & Works (MoH&W) to pay this amount
the Compaay on behalf of PHA and necessary provision in this regard should be made in the Federal Budget. The MoF in its le
further advised that the amount of Rs. 218.1 million paid to the Company be utilized for increase in the paid-up capital. Accordingly,
this amount was disclosed as “advance against issue of capital” in the financial statements of the year ended December 31, 2015.

Following the recognition of the said balance of Rs. 218.1 million as "advance against issue of capital”, the Company suspended the
recording of mark-up income in last year with retrospective impact in accordance with the requirement of [AS 8 'Accounting Policigs,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'.

. However, MoF through its letter No. F.90(14)IF-1/2322-234 dated Aprit 20, 2017 clarified that the payments carlier made to the

Company was not for the issuance of share capital, accordingly the said amount has been reclassified to income.

This amount is netted with mark-up accrued on deferred credit balance amounting to Rs, Nil (2016: Rs. 79.4 million @ 4.97%).

2017 2016
{Rupees in ‘000) ——

RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS Note

Tagged accounts settled 18.1 75) (847)

This represents adjustment made in head office records for accounts closed at district offices while balance appearing at head office
records. ' )

RELIEF PACKAGE AND REPROCESSING ADJU STMENTS

Reprocessing and closing adjustment 19.1 6,515 6,572
Relief package and settlement scheme 19.2 - 1,268
Waiver to partner accounts : 19.3 890 1,8%6

7,405 9,736

This represents reversal of income recognized in previous years based on reconciliations of coilection and disbursement.

This represents reversal of rental income which was credited to profit and loss account in previous years. This reversal has been
made as a result of relief package and settlement scheme announced by the Board of Directors.

This represents waiver of mark-up to partners under relief package.
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21.

211

22.

22.1

WRITE-OFF AGAINST ADVANCES

Directly charged to Profit & Loss account

Write Offs of Below Rs. 500,000

OTHER INCOME

Profit commission from an insurance company
Rent of buildings

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Inspection and application fee

Miscellaneous

This represents advance unit purchase charges for GAS Flexi Scheme, income earned on employée vehicle advances,

etc.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other perquisites
Defined benefit plan - pension

Defined benefit plan - post retirement medical benefit
Employees' compensated absences
Voluntary retirement schemes

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.
Legal and professional

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangibles

Postage and telephone

Traveling and conveyance

Stationery and printing

Security guards

Advertisement and publicity

Auditors' remuneration

Entertainment expense

Education and training

Subscription and publication

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Others

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Half yearly review

Special certification, internal control over financial reporting,
other reviews

P

" Note

20.1

102.1

211

Note

293
29.3
298

10.2
10.3

22.1

w7 - 2016

- (Rupees in ‘000) -——-—
598 - 8035
598 805
107,304 155,973 -
34,181 - 28,291
33 42,021
7,565 17,295
36,752 29,670
185,835 273,250

2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) ——
682,428 1,004,899
122,843 340,990
30,681 96,700
(82,502) (98,305)
23,841 200,718
41,605 46,081
43,786 39,647
35,437 38,381
31,361 30,595
33 37
16,655 16,987
9,754 14,509
3,784 6,058
5,691 5,285
2,578 2,984
2,750 2,500
1,222 2,259
1,174 1,055
135 201
41,016 -
3,246 6,184
1,017,816 1,758,099
1,210 1,100
424 385
1,116 1,015
2,750 2,500
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25.

25.1

25.2

S

Note
OTHER PROVISIONS

Provision against doubtful receivable insurance premium from parmers

Provision for non-utilization charges of lands
Provision for advance against purchase of land - housing projects

OTHER CHARGES

Bank commission and charges
Penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan

TAXATION
Company
Current
- for the year

- for prior years 25.3

Deferred
- for the year 111

Associate
Current tax
- for the year 8.7.1

- for prior years

Deferred tax
- for the year

Relationship between accounting profit / (IoSs) and taxation

Tax on accounting profit @ 30% (2016: 31%) 254

2017

2016

(Rupees in ‘000) ~——

2,488 21,742
- 7,280
- 3,345
2,488 32,367
7,843 8,516
230 1,036
8,073 9,552
342,116 29,244
51,003 -
393,119 29,244
393,119 29,244
667 839
667 839
667 839
393,786 30,083
2,013,876 (835,867)

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) while assessing taxable income for the tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014
has disallowed certain expenses and added to income certain amounts on account of mark-up on SBP credit lines,
demand charges, other provisions/write-offs etc. and raised demands of Rs. 253, Rs. 312, Rs. 385 and Rs. 274 million
for the tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively. Against demand raised by the FBR, the Company has paid
Rs. 464 million. Appeals filed by the Company for the tax years 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2014 are pending before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue for disailowances of above expenses amounting to Rs. 3,447 million. During the
year, AITR has issued an order in favour of the company allowing mark-up on SBP credit lines as expense. However,
through said order AITR also upheld the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeal decision in regard of demand

charges. Further, management is pursuing the case regarding demand charges in Sindh High Court.




26.1

28.

29.

' 27.

This represents an amount paid to tax authorities in resﬁeét of rectification order passed in respect of tax y

fiscal year 2016 and was paid in 2017

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial statements for the

current year as the income of the Company is subject to Altermnative Corporate Tax i.e. 17

2016 minimum tax was recorded.

BASIC & DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ot
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - Rupees in ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares - basic

Basic garnings per share - Rupees

‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares - diluted 1
Diluted eamings per share - Rupees 26.1
There are no dilutive earnings and potential ordinary shares during the year.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasmy.banks 5
Balances with other banks 6

STAFF STRENGTH
As at end of the year

Permanent
Contractual basis

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

Pension
Post retirement medical benefit
Employees' compensated absences

ear 2009 during the
% on profit before tax where as i
2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) —
1,620,090 {865,950)
1,391,033,339 300,100,006
1.16 (2.89)
- 1,936,500,006 |
- (2.39)
53,531 121,378
771,582 650,310
. 825,113 771,688
451 622
7 48
2,374,416 2,781,324
736,600 951,949
311,734 448 480
3,422,750 4,181,733




l 29.1  Principal actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in actuarial valuations carried out by the independent actuary as at December 31,
l 2017, under the “Projected Unit Credit’ method, are as follows:
. Post retirement medical
_ Pension " benefit Compensated absences
l 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Discount rate per annum 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5%i
f
| |
Expected per annum rate of t
i
return on plan assets 9.5% 9.5% - - - - |
l Expected per annum rate of
increase in future salaries 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5% 9.5%
t
l Indexation of pension 8.5% 8.5% - - - -
.
I Indexation of medical benefit - - 2.5% 2.5% - -]
' 29.2 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan
. Pension Post retirement medical benefit
l 2017 2016 2017 2016
—— (Rupces in 000} —— — (Rupees in ‘000) —
' Present value of defined benefit obligations 5,859,114 5955378 736,600 951,949
Fair value of plan assets {3,484,698) (3,174,054) - -
Net liability at end of the year 2,374,416 2,781,324 736,600 951,949
i —
29.2.1 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations
I Pension Post retirement medical benefit
2017 2016 2017 2016
' (Rupees in *000) — (Rapees in *000) -——
Present value of defined benefit obligations at
l beginning of the year 5955378 5,721,530 951,949 901,830
Current service cost 128,973 128,000 26,277 25,585
Interest cost _ 494,377 545,357 81,559 87,202
| Benefits paid during the year {1,502,815) {335,927) (186,857) (59.629)
Remeasurement: actuarial loss / (gain) 982,173 145,442 (59,173) 13,048
Gain due to VSS (198.972) (49.024) (77,155) (16,087)
l Present value of defined benefit obligations at
end of the year 5,859,114 5,955,378 736,600 951,949
A%




29.2.2

29.3

29.3.1
29.3.2

294

29.5

29.5.1

Movement in fair value of plan assets

¥ air value of plan assets at
beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Contribution during the period
Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurement: acluarial gain / (toss)

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

Charge for defined benefit plan

Expense recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost
Met interest expense
Gain due to VSS

Expense for the year

Remeasurement actuarial loss / (gain) recognized in

other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations
Actuarial (gain) / toss on fair value of plan assets

Net recognized liability

Net liability at beginning of the year
Expense récognized in profit and loss account

Beaefits paid by the Company
Contributions during the year

Remeasurement loss recognized in other

comprehensive income

Net liability at cnd of the year

Components of plan assets

Governirnent securities and TFC's
Bank balances

The expected return on plan assets was determined
underlying the current investment policy.
redemption yields as at the reporting date.
return experienced in the market.

A

Expected

Pension Post retivement medical benefit
2017 2016 2017 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) —— (Rupees in *000) ~--—
3,174,054 2.834,410
301,535 283,441
1,502,788 535927
(1,502,788) (535,927
9,109 56,203
3,484,698 3,174,054
e ————
128973 128,000 26,277 _ 25,58
192,842 261,916 81,559 87,2
(198,972) (49,024) (77,155) (16,087
122,843 340,892 30,681 ' 96,700
982,173 145,442 59,173 13,048
(9,109) (36,203) - .
973,064 89,239 59,173 13,048
— ———
2,781,324 - 2,887,120 951,949 501,830
122,843 340,892 30,681 96,700
(1,502,815) (535.927) (1%6,857) (59,629)
973,064 89,239 (59,173) 13,048
1374416 2,781,324 736,600 951,949
3,483,511 2,654,785
1,187 1,765
3,484,698 2,656,550
——  — e — —_——
by considering the expected returns available on the assets
yields on fixed interest investments are based on grpss
Expected return on equity investments reflect long-term real rateg of



29.8

Sensitivity analysis

Increase in Discount Rate by 1 %
Decrease in Discount Rate by 1 %

Increase in expected future increment in salary by 1%
Decrease in expected future increment in salary by 1%

Increase in expected future increment in pension by 1%
Decrease in expected future increment in pension by 1%

Increase in expected future increment in medical benefit by 1%
Decrease in expected future increment in medical benefit by 1%

Five year's data on surplus / deficit of the plan and actuarial adjustments

Pension Fund

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit
obligations
Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets

Post retirement medical benefits

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation

Employees' éompesated absences

Balance at beginning of the year
Expense for the year
Benefits paid

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and calcuiatinﬁ
the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes. The change i
the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption is summarized below:
Pension Post retireme
medical benefy
(Rupees in ‘000) -
5,160,273 658,7
(6,721,242) (830,910)
5,995,411 -
(5,735,235) -
6,580,680 -
(5,255,280) -
- 811,525
- {672,025)
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Rupees in '000%)
5,859,114 5,955,378 5,721,530 4,559,650 3,237,201
(3,434,698) (3,174,054) (2,834,410} {2,717.200) (2,399,696}
1374416 2,781.324 2,387,120 1,842,450 837,505
982,173 145,442 837,075 927,638 (247.879)
9,109 56,203 (202,061) 5,543 59,448
736,600 17.286 17.286 638,194 738,816
(59,173) - - 225,831 53,154
2017 2016
(Rupees in “0600) ———-
448.480 567,992
(82,502) (98,305)
(54,244) (21,207
311,734 448,480

Balance at end of the year

(14
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Directors Managing Director Executives

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
- (Rupees in '000")

Dyirectors fees 780 1,250 - - - -
Basic pay - - 2,354 8,916 26,805 52910 -
Rent and house maintenance - - 1,059 4,296 10,282 6,853
Utilities - - - 712 1,082 69
Medical - - - 111 2,266 1,1
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - - -
Others - - 1,604 11,506 4,850 3,1
780 1,250 5,017 25,541 45,288 64,769

Number of persons 7 7 1 1 . 13 18

The Company also provides free use of the Company maintained car to Managing Director and Executives in

accordance with their entitiements.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of traded investments other than those classified as held to maturity is based on quoted market price. Fair valhe

of unquoted equity investments is determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest availaljle

financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufﬁﬁ:t

reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market

S

for similar instruments. The provision for non-performing advances has been calculated in accordance with the Company's

accounting policy as stated in note 3.4 to these financial statements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturities are stated in note 34.2 and 34.3.

The management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not signiﬁcazly
er

different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or in the case of custo
advances are frequently repriced.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise associated undertaking, retirement benefit plans, directors and key management personnel of the
Company. These transactions were made on substantially the same commercial terms as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with unrelated parties and did not involve more than a normal amount of risk. There were no
transactions with the key management personne! other than those under the terms of their employment. Details of transactions

with the related parties other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:
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IMp

2017 2016

. - {Rupees in ‘HH) ——
Relationship Nature of Transaction
Associated undertaking ‘
- Takaful Pakistan Limited Insurance premium paid 8,595 10,701
Insurance claim received - 395 127
Key management personnel . Loans and advances 28,926 3,436
Proceeds from disposal of
operating fixed assets 222 32
Retirement and other service benefits Pension 3,830 5,354
Post retirement medical benefit 956 1,467
Employees' compensated absences (2,572) (1,022

The related party status of outstanding receivables and payables as at December 31, 2017 are included in respective notes to
the financial statements.

Remuneration to key management personnet is disclosed in Note 30 to these financial statements.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY , LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO and NET STABLE FUNDING RATIO.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) requires all Banks/DFIs to maintain regulatory capital for credit, market an
operational risks which should at least be equal to 11.275% (including credit conversion buffer) of total ris
weighted assets. As per SBP BPRD Circular no 06 dated August 15, 2013 wherein SBP requires banks/DFIs
implement Basel Il reforms issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) to further strengthe:
the capital related rules. The Company has implemented Basel IIl framework in the light of SBP instructions. Th
Company monitors its capital adequacy ratio and endeavors to maintain it at a level sufficiently higher than
minimum regulatory requirement. The Company calculates capital requirement as per Basel III regulatory
framework, using the Standardized Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk whereas Basic Indicator Approach fo
Operational Risk.

—y

Objectives of Capital Management
The capital management objectives of the Company are as follows:

- To maintain sufficient capital to support overall business strategy, expansion and growth; .
- To integrate capital allocation decisions with the strategic and financial planning process;
- To meet the regulatory capital adequacy ratios as defined by SBP; :
- “To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide adequaty
return to shareholders; and

iV

- To have a prudent buffer to protect the Company under different economic and stress scenarios caused by
unexpected and unforeseeable events.

In accordance with BSD Circular no. 19 dated September 05, 2008 the minimum paid-up capital requirement (net (L
losses) of the Company at December 31, 2009 and onwards would be Rs. 6 billion. In order to meet the shortfall, th

Company has approached its shareholders i.e. Ministry of Finance and State Bank of Pakistan, to inject the required
capital, the eventual outcome of which has been disclosed in Note 1.




[n view of the above, mini capital requi ofHousch&ldingFinmceCuwmyLin@dhnbeeuﬁdﬁlhdonimof&dinuyshm

“These instructions are effective from December 31, 2013 inlpbmdmmr%ﬁﬂlimplmmﬁuninwmdbymb«ﬂ. 2019

Under Basel Tl guidelincs banks / DFIs are toquired to maintain the following, ratios om au ongoing basis:
Phase-int arrang; and foll imph tation of the minimum capits] requiremends:
5. pe. Ratic 2013 2014 2015 2016 2007 2018 2019
1 CET-1 T 500% 5.50% 65.00% 6.00% | 6.00% | 6.00% 6.00%
[ F] ADT-1 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% ' 1.50% 1.50%
3 TIER-1 6.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% 1.50% 7.50% 7.50%
4 Total Capital | 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 1000% | ] __ 1000% 10.00%
s CCB - - 0.25% 0.65% 1.28% 1.90% 7.50%
6 Totah  Capital 10.00% 10.00% 10.25% 10.65% 11275% 11.90% 12.50%
) plus CCB
The Company’s regulatory capital under Basel 1 fi ork is analyzed in following tenms:

1. Fier | Capital (going-concem capital}
i, Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)
ii. Additional Tiet L (ATT)
2. Tier 2 Capital (gone-concem cepital)
Commen Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital consist sum of the following items:
i. Fully paid up (common shares) capital / assigned capital.
ii. Bal in share premmi
iii. Reserve for Issue of Bonus Sharcs
iv. Genseralf Statutory Reserves as disclosed on the balance-sheet
v. Minority Interest (In case of consclidation)

wi. Up—appmpﬁamd!unmrﬁmdpmﬁts(nﬁofwmdmdlmm,ifmy)
vii, Less regnlatocy adjustments applicable of CET1 as specified in Basel I

Additional Tier 1 Capital (AT1)

Additiona Tier capital shall consist of the following itcms:

i hmummuimwdbyhmksdmnwﬂtheqdiﬁrhguimﬁxATlmspedﬁsthasdm
ii. ShmpwﬁmmdﬁngﬁmﬂleimmanThm

iii. Minority interest i.6. AT1 issued by consolidated parties o thind parties.

iy, Less regulatory adjustments applicsble on AT1 as specified in Basel I

Tier 2 Capital {Gone Concern Capital or Supplemsentary Capital)

TheTquﬂul(agnmmeapiml)Mindudeufonuwingdm

1. Subordinated debyi ts (meeling, cligibility criteria as specificd in Bascl 1)
ii.Slmepruﬂmmdmﬁnm&cimwofhmmhﬂudedinﬁuz.
iti. Minority Interest i.¢. Tier -2 issued by tidated subsidisries to third particd as specified in Basel 111

iv. Revaluation reserves (net of deficits, if any)

v. General provisions or general Reserves for losn losses
vi. Foreign Exchange Transiation Reserves

vii. Undisclosed Reserves
vii, Less regulatory sdj applicable on Ticr -2 capital as specified in Basef I1Y

B

youh




332 Capital Adequscy Ratio {CAR) disclosure
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RETURN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

Common Equity Tier 1 eapital (CET 1): Instruments & reserves

Fully Paid-up Capital / Capital deposited with SBP

Advance againgt issue of capital :

Reserve for issue of Boaus Shares |

Discount on Issue of shares 4

General / Statutory Reserves (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)

Gait/(Losses) on derivatives held a8 Cash Flow Hedge

Unappropriated / unremitted profits - net of accumuiated losses, if any (losses a8 negative oumber)

oot b W=

Minority Interests acising from CETI capital instruments issued to thind party by consolidated corng bsidiari

{from "Consolidation sheet")
CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Total regulstory adjustaweis spplied o CETL
Common Equity Tier 1

[ - T

-

Additionad Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital

12 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any relsted share premium

13 of which: Classified a3 equity

14 of which: Classified as lishilities

15  Additional Tier- | capital instrumerts issued o third parties by consotidated subsidiaries (snount allowed in group AT
1)

16 of which: instrument issued by subsidisries subject to phase out

17  ATI before Reguiatory Adjustments

18  Tatal regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital

19  Additional Tier | capital after regulatory adjustments

20  Additionsl Tier § capital recognized for capital adequacy

21 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1} (11+20)

Tier 2 Capital
22 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instraments under Basel IH plus sy related share premium
23 Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase-out arangement ismed under pre-Basel 3 nules
24  Tier 2 capitad instruments issued to thind parties by lidased subsidiarics (; il
25  ofwhich; instruments issuod by subsidiarics subject to phase out
Generat Provisions or general reseeves for toan tosscs-up to maxinmm of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets

27 Revalustion Reserves {net of taxes)

28 of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets

29 of which: Unrealized gainvlosses on AFS

30 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves

31 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)

31 T2 before regulatory sdjustments

33 Total regulaiory adjustment applicd to T2 capital

34 Tier 2 capital (T2) sfter regulatory adjustments

35 Tier2 capital recognized for capital adequacy

36 Portion of Additional Ticr | capital recognized in Tier 2 capital
37 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy
38 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + sdmissible TZ) (11+3T)

d bt group tier 2)

39 Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)

Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted ssseds)

44 CETI (o total RWA

41  Tier-l capital to toisl RWA

42 Total eapital i total RWA

43  Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requiresent plus capital conservation buffts plus any other buffer
Teduirement)

44 of which: capital conservation buffer requirement

45 of which: countercyclical tuffer requirement

46 of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement

47 CETI available to maet buffers (as & percentage of risk weighted assets)

Nak 1 i ey &
Lo hia §

ts prescribed by SBP
43 CET! minimum ratio

49  Tier 1 minimum rakie

50 Total capital mininwum ratio

Valm

Reference

Note 33.2.1

« 8 B

Note 33.2.2

<

Note 33.2.3

Note 33.5

07

2016

— (Rupess in ‘000) ——

19,365,000 3,001,000
1.637,680 713,662 |
(5,375,752)| (5,751.934)
15,026,918 (2,043,272
(68T} {30,903)
15,026,241 (2.074,175)
- 16,364,000 §

- 16,364,000

- 16,364,000
15,026,241 (2.074,175)
98,358 94,482
1174 (1.686)
100,542 92,796

160,542 93,316
15,126,783 (2,074,175)

11,593,897 11,000,627
128.96% -18.86%
128.96% -18.84%
130.47% -18.36%
6.00% 6.00%!
7.50% 7.50%)
11.275% 10.65%




3.2.1

P S

-

35

36

Regulatory Adjustments and Additional Information

Common Equity Tier | capital: Regulatory adjustesents
Goodwill (net of related deforred tax lisbility)
Al other intangibles (net of aay associzted def:
Shonfall in provisions against classified asscts
Defumdmmﬂm:ﬂymﬁmnm&hbiﬁwmmmﬁmmpmydiﬁum
{net of related tax liability) '
Defined-benefit pension find ner assets

A tax lisbility)

RgdpmulmhohinssinCEﬂupitﬂinﬂmenﬂofbmﬁn;ﬁnaﬁdwmmemﬁﬁu
Cash flow bedge reserve

Investment in own shares/ CETT instruments

Securitization gain on sale

Capital shorefall of regulated subsidiaries

Deficit on sccount of rovaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets/ AFS

Investments in the capital i of baaking, financial and i ities thet are outside the
smpeofmdmwmoﬁdlhn.wbmhcbu&doanﬁmmmmm%ofhimdm
capital {(smount above 10% threshold)

Significant i in the stocks of banking, financial snd insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory lidation shove 10% threshold)
MMT&MMMW&M(MW[O%&@B&&D&&M
ax liability)

Amount exceeding 15% thressold

of which: significant i in the stocks of financial entitics

of which: deferred tax asscis arising from tenporary differences

Nationsl specif dj applied to CET1 capital

P regulatory adi
Investments in TFCs of other banks excoeding the prescribed linit
Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details) .
Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments spplied to CET1 (sum of 1 to 21)

Additions! Tier-1 & Tier-t Capital: regulatory adj s
I in | funds ding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment}
[nvestment in own AT1 capitel instramcnts

Reciprocal cross holdings in Additiona} Tier 1 capital i of banking, financial and i
eatities
Investments in the capital i ts of bankinig, financial end i entitics that arc outside the

mof@mmﬁdﬁmwﬁmhmmmmmmmlwahwm
capitat (amount above 10% tweshold)

Significant investments in the capital i of banking, fi isd and i
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation : )
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Ties-} and Tier-2 capitat based on pre-Basel [ treaiment
whlch,d;wmgmsmumlpenod,mnamsubjectmdednmﬁuunddmmal

tiex-1 capital

Ad_hsuumtsmAddiﬁmalTnlduemhmfﬁdmtTmmemdeducﬁm:

Total regulazocy adjustment applied to AT1 capital (sum of 23 to 29}

catitics that arc

Tier 2 Capital: reguintory adjustments
Portion of dedaction applicd 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel [l reatment

which, during wansitional period, an subject to dedu from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 i of banking, fi iak and i

Investmvent in own Tiet 2 capital instravent

Investments in the capital i ts of baaking, financial and i entities that are outside the

wofwmﬁdmmhmkdmmmmmlO%oflheissuedah-e--
capital (amount sbove {0% tweshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by b king, finsncial and i
that ar¢ outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

Total regulatory adjustment appli d to T2 capital (sum of 31 to 35)

.

Dot

2007 018
Amounis
subject to Pre-
Amount Basel 11 Amount
treatment®
(Rupees in *000)
637 550 616
- 30,287
637 S58 30,902
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37

(i}
(i)
(iif)

i)

41

42
43
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Additionsl Information

Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel [T trestment

Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items {which during the transitionsl period will be risk weighted subject 10
Pre-Basel 1T Treatment)

of which: deferred tax assets

of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net asscts

of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance emtities whers holding is less
than £0% of the issued common share capital of the entity

of which: Recognized portion of imvestiment i capital of banking, financial and ities where b ""“is.mcu

than 10% of the issued common share capitel of the eatity

A ts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant isrvestments in the capital of viber financial entitics

Significant i in the stock of financisl entities

Deferred tax assets arising from texnpory differences (net of related tax Lishility)

Applicable taps on the inchusion of provisions in Tier 2 :

Provisious eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exp thject to stindardized approack (prior to appli
cap) .

Cap on inclusion of provisicas in Tier 2 under standardized approach

Provisions cligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to
application of cap)

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach

Capital Structure Reconciliation

Table: 44.3.1

Assets

Cash and balances with reamry banks
Balanced with other banks
Lending 1o financial institations
Investments

Advances

Opemting fixed assets
Deferred tax asscis

Other assets

Totsl assets

Lisbilities & Equity

Bills payabie

Bomrowings

Deposits mnd other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilitics against asscts subject to finance lease
Defesred tax Liabilitics

Other iiabilities

Tots) linhilities

Share capital/ Head office capital account
Reserves

Unappropristed/ Unremitted profiv’ (losses)
Minority Interest

Conversion of Liabilities into share capital
Surplus oa revaluation of assets

Total liabilities & equity

Vsl

of

1016

017
—- {(Rupecyin “008) —amr
11.595.891 11,000,627
- 20,191
93,363 94,482
2017
Balance sheet a3 Usnder
in the published regulatory
financial scope of
siateuents consolidativa
—— {Rupees in ‘008) —
53531 53,531
771,582 771,581
851,542 851,542
6,489,513 5,489,512
11,449,397 11,342,094
292,715 P %) 1
421,793 -
20,330,073 19,500,976
5,300,971 5,300,911
5,300,971 5,300,971
19,365,000 19,365,000
1,037,680 1,019,868
(5.375,752) (5,447,802}
2,174 2,14
10,330,073 29,241,011




Table: 44.3.2

Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanced with other hanks
Lending o finsncial institutions
Investmenis

of which: Non-signifi

in the capiial instr of b ial and insurence entities ) -

exceeding 10% threshold
of which: significamt investmenis in the copital insir

issued by b ial and insurance emtilies -

Ik TR ¥

of which: Mutugl Funds ding reguh hreshold

g ¥
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capiial instrunent (separate for CET1, ATL T3

af which; athers (PIBs & T-Bills)
Advances

shortfall in provisions/ excess of iotal EL over eligible p

general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital
Fixed Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
of which: DTAs that rely on fuiure profitability excluding those

ing from iemporary differences

af whick: DTAs arising from temporary differes
Othier asscts
of which: Goodwill
of which: fntongibles .
of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
Total assets

Liabilities & Equity
Rills payabie
Borrowings
Deposits and other accounts
Sub-ordinated loans
of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1
of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Liabilities against assets subject to fi lease
Deferred tax liabilities
af which: DTLs refated to goodwill
of which: DTLs related to intangible assets
of which: DTLs related 10 defined pension fund nel assers
of which: other deferred uxs liabilities
Othe lisbilii
Total Labilitles

Share capital

of which: amount eligible for CETT

af which: amount efigible for AT
Reserves

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET 1 ({provide brealaip)

af which: poriion eligibie for inclusion in Tier 2
Unappropeiated profit/ (fosses)
Minority Interest

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT!

af which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Conversion of lisbilities into share capital
Surplus on revaleation of assets

of which; Revaluation reserves on Fixed Assets

of which: Unrealized Gainy/Losses on AFS

In case of Deficit on revaluation {deduction from CET!)
Total Labilities & Equity

33,4 Main Features Template of Regulatory Capital Instruments

ding regulaiory th

2047

Balance sheet as
in the published
financial
statements

—— (Rupees

Under
regulsfory
scope of
consolidation
in “000) —

53,531
11,582
851,542

6,489,513

6,429,253
11,449,397
98,235
292,715

53,531
771,582
851,542

6,489,513

6,429,253
11,469,397
98,235
92,7118

421,793

687

20,330,073

$,300.971

5300971

5,300,971

5,300,971

19,265,000
19,365,000

1,037,680
1,037,680

(5375,752)

174

2,174

" 19,365,000
19,365,000

1,037,689
1,037,680

(S.375,752)

20,330,073

Main Features

Common Shares

lssuer
Unigue identifler

House Building Finance Company
HBFCL
C ies Ordinance 1984

Governing Law(s) of the insir

Regulstory trestment

Transitional Basel I rules
Post-transitional Base [T rules
Eligible at solo/ group/ group & solo
Instrument type
Ammumognizedinregulmorycapmi(Cmumyini’KRﬂmusmd)
Par value of instrument

Accounting classification

Original date of issaance

| Furthur Issuance of 1,636,400,000
Perpetusl or dated

Original maturity date

Continon Equity Tier

Reference

— -

-

na T o

Brver <=

E
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33.6

Issuer call subjéct 10 prior supervisory appeoval . ’ Not applicable

Opticual call date, ingent call dates and redempion amount Not applicable
Sub calt if applicabl Not applicable
Coupenas / dividends

Fixed or flosting dividend/ conpon Not applicable
coupon rale and any related index/ benchmark Not applicable
Existonce of a dividend stopper No

Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Fully discretionary
Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No
Noncumulative or cemulative . Not applicable
Convertible or non-convertible .

If convertible, conversion trigger (s) Not applicable
If comvertible, fully or pantially Not applicable
If convertible, conversion cato ) Not applicable
1f convextibl datory or optioaal i Not applicable
If convextible, specify instrument type convettible into Mot applicable
|Ef convertible, specify issuer of instrument it comverts into_ i Not spplicable
Write-down feature

If write-down, write-down trigger(s) Not applicable
If write-down, full or partial Wot spplicsble
If write-down, permancat of emporary " [Not applicable
[If teonporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism | Not applicsble
Position in subordinstion hierarchy in liquidation

M pliant transitioned fi Not applicable
i ify non-compliant feanures Not applicable
Risk Weighted Assets

Tl:cclpinltequimnmuformbankingpoupupuﬂuemajmriskmﬁsshuuldbeh:dicmdinﬂummgimbdw:-

Capital Requirements Risk Weighied Assetx
7 . 2016 2m7 1016

Soverecign - . - -
Public Sector enfitics . 3,265 - 28,957 -
Banks 29,836 28,342 264,625 266,126
Corporate : 6818 3,226 60,469 30,287
Retail . - - . .
Residential Mortgages 323,228 341,286 2,866,764 3,204,559
Past Dus loans 377,664 295,668 3,349,567 2,776,229
Opersting Fixed Assets 32,542 33,531 292,166 314,845
Other assets 52,636 84,654 466,835 794,872
Non-market related .

Contingencies & C i 60,896 18,278 540,096 171,627
Macket refated . - . -
Equity Exposure Risk in the Banking Book
Market Risk
Capitsl Requirement for portfolios subject to Standardized Approach

Interest rate risk 20,321 44,451 180,230 417,376

Equity position risk - . . -
Capita! Requirament for portfolios subject to Internal Models Approach - - - -
Operationai Risk
Capital Requirement for operational risks 399,607 322,131 3,544,188 3,024,706
TOTAL ) 1307213 1,171,567 11,593,897 11,000,627

2017 1016
C:
apital Adequacy Ratioa Required Actoal Required Actaal

CET! to total RWA 6.00% 128.96% 6.00% -18.86%
Tier-1 capital to total RWA : : 7.50% 128.96% 7.50% -i8.86%
Total capital to total RWA 11..275% 130.47% 10.65% -18.86%
Leverage Ratio
The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular no. 06 of 2013 has issued i i ding impk ion of parailel mn of leverage ratio reporting sad its

p from Dy ber 31, 2013 to December 31, 2017 Dumgmnpmdth:ﬁulahhannn.mdsmyﬁmba- ‘,' to the definition, will be completed, with a view o set
the icverage ratio as a sep capital standard on Dx her 31, 2018 wi the banks/DFIs are required to disclose the leverage ratio from December 31, 2015.

The leverage ratio of the company @5 of December 31, 2017 stands at 72% positive (Oecember 31, 2016: 9.57% negative). Tier | Capital as at December 31, 2017 is Rs. £5,026
nillion positive (Decanber 31, 2016: Rs. 2,074 millioa negative} and total exposure as ot December 31, 2017 is Rs. 20, £70 miltion (December 31, 2016: Rs. 20,906 militon).

AYA




3.7

T21
2.2

3t
32
33

5.1
5.2
53

10
11
12

" Additional requirements of which:

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Liquidity Risk Management frameworlk is guided by Board of Directors (BoD) and Board Sub Committes on Risk Management and Compliance (BRMC). Treasury Divigian is
responsible to pmpose,mcommmdandmﬂmnm:lmhqmdﬂynskmgum policy which is approved by the Board.

Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for reviewing and approving the fiquidity risk limits, cnsuring the liquidity risk management practices are in line with the
defined strategy. ALCO is also responsible 1o recommend Liquidity Risk policy for approval to BRMC / BOD.

Uquidily-riskisdcﬁncdlsthgrisktintabankdoumthavesuﬂicienxﬁnamialmmmetilsobligationandwmnimﬂsnslhqﬂﬂdmmdhvenoodtudmﬁum
securc funds at a higher cost. HBFCmetomamhpuﬁoﬁooﬂi{nidmAﬂﬁqnidiwﬁnﬁmmdmmmﬁmhminALCOonlpﬂ'iodicbasis. HBFCL
pu'fmmiuLiquitlitym:&tonaperiodicbasisinmdummsmﬂutﬂxﬂidmﬁqnidityisdwaysavﬂablcinudatoﬁdﬁnHBFCL‘sﬁnmcidoommitmuu.Suus
testing techmique is also used to identify the potential i ofemmyaphusﬂ)hm“mnmmdewvﬂueofapmfoﬁo.Suustesﬁngicmuiasmdevdopuiin

Regulalor.qutddilyCovmgeRzﬁo(wR)tefﬂ!tqthchiglﬂyﬁqmdmhddbyﬂwblnktonwdiushmmmobﬁgaﬂm&LCRisusednsampitomngeliqmdhyrisk
LCR has two components: M@wﬂhyﬁqﬁdm&lﬁM)mdtetdnamhuwﬂmH@Amﬁmufﬁmmdxmkmdﬂymldwmbydmmwm
obtaining find, HQLA structure has been divided into l)cuhmdum:ybahme,nmnkmblesomiﬁﬁ;)wmmmedeblmuiﬁﬁ with credit rating, 4)non-financial
equity shares

Totsl
unweighted 1
value (average)

Rupees in '000°

Totsl weighted 2
value (average)

Total high quality liquid assets (HQLA) - 6,480,610
Retail deposits and deposits from small business customers of which:
stable deposit ' . .
Lests stsble deposit - -
Unsecured wholesate funding of which: .
Operational deposits (all counterparties) - .
Nen-operational deposits (all counterparties) - -
Unsecured debt - .
Secured wholesale funding - -

Outflows related to derivative exposures and other collateral requirements - ' -
Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products - -
Credit and Liquidity facilitics (40,435 1,022
Other contractual funding obligations
Other conlingent funding obligations
TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 140,435 6,487,632

CASH INFLOWS
Sccured lending N T
Taflows from flly performing exposures ’ -

Other Cash inflows ’ 547,079 273,540
TOTAL CASH INLFOWS 547079 273,540

Total Adjusted Value
TOTAL HQLA 6480610
TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 1,755
LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO 369173%

unweighted valucs must be caloulated as ding bal maturing or callable within 30 days ( for inflows and outflaws)
Wﬁg}ledvduﬁmuﬂbcaladuedaﬁﬁdulppﬁmﬁmofmspecﬁvehairum(furmu)otinﬂowmdontﬂowrates(forinﬂowsandmtﬂws) .
Adjnmdvﬂuumbecduﬂamdaﬁﬁmappﬂﬂﬁmofbod:(i)hﬂrmmdiuﬂwmdunﬂcwmﬂand(ﬁ)myapplicabhmps(i.e.caponlcvdzBmdleveumctsfut
HQLA and cap on inflows)

M
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Net Stable Funding Ratio

Net Stabie Funding Rasio (NSFR) is used to reduce fanding nsk over a longer time horizen by requiring banks to fund their activitics with sufficicntly stable sources of funding
it1 ordes to mitigate the risk of future funding stress. The NSFR limits overreliance on short-term wholesale fumding, ges better assessment of funding risk across all on ~
and offbalance sheet items and promotes finding stability. The ratic is defined as the amount of available stable funding (ASF), relative to the amount of required stable funding
(RSF).

LR iX

Unweighted Value Residual Maturity *
6 months to befow | 1 year and abeve 1 | Weighted Value
1 year year

{Amount in PKR in thousands) No Maturity Below 6 months

Capital:
Regulatory capital 15,026,245 - - - 15,026,241
Other capital instruments 100,542 - - - 100,542

Retail deposits and depasit from small business :

CuStomers:

Stable deposits . - - - -
Less stable depasits - - - - -

Wholesale funding: :
Openational deposits - - - - -
Other wholesale funding - - - . .

Other liabilities: 388,084 370,768 4542118 4,727,502
NSFR derivative Liabilities - - - 1. - .
Al other liabilities and equity not included in other - - - - B,
categorics

Total ASF 19,854,285

Total NSFR high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) . . . . "
Deposits held at other financial institutions for operational - 7582 : - - 385,791
Performing loans and securities:
Performing loans to financisl institutions secured - 300,000 - 551,542 100,154
Level § HQLA :
Performing loans to financial institutions secured by
non-Level | HQLA and unsecured performing loans - - - . -
1o financial institutions '
Performing loans to non- financial corporate clients,
loans to retail and small business customers, and - - - - -
loans to sovereigns, central banks and PSEs, of ’
which;
With 8 risk weight of less than or equal to 35% under - -
the Basel Il Standardised Approach for credit risk - 7.821.648 5084471
Securities that are not in defavit and do ot qualify as - - - - -
HOQLA including exchange-traded equities.
Other assets:
Physical traded commodities, including gold - - - - .
Assers posted as initial margin for derivative - - - - -
Ccontracis
NSFR derivative assets - - - - - .
NSFR derivative liabilities before deduction of - - - - .
variatiom margin posted
All other assets not included in the above categories 3619088 785,603 - - 4,011,889
Off-baiance sheet items - - - 540,096 27.005
Total RSF 9,608,950
Net Stable Funding Ratio (%) 207%

*The unweighted value by residual matority is based on working prepared by Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) of the Bank

a7




34.1

RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Institutions are exposed to various risks in pursuit of their business objectives. The nature and complexity of

these risks has rapidly changed over time. The failure to adequately manage these risks not only results in business losses | |
but also places hurdles in achieving strategic objectives. Consequently, a solid and vigorous risk management framework |
in the organization is required.

The Company's risk Management Policy is in line with the Risk Management Guidelines of State Bank of Pakistan and
Basel 11 Accord. The Risk Management Policy is approved by the Board of Directors. ’ : ‘

The risk management policies and procedures cover all activities of the Company including credit evaluation, treasury |
and investment operations. The basic principles employed in formulation of the above policies and procedures involves
identification, measurement, monitoring and controling risks to ensure that: ' ‘

- The Company's risk exposure is within the limits established by the Board of Directors.
- Risk taking decisions are in line with the business strategy and objectives of the Company.

- The expected payoffs compensate the risks taken by the company.

Risk profile of the Company

The key risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk.
Risk Structures and

Organizational framework for Risk Management includes the following:

The Board of Directors is responsible for overall supervision of the risk management process. A Board Risk Management |
Committee has been formed to regularly review risk related activities of the organization. The Board Risk Management
Committee is responsible to establish and implement risk management framework of the Company. Individual risks
reviewed and controlled by various committees at management level like Assets and Liabilities Committee and Credi}
Committee. ' ' :
Risk Management Department is responsible for coordinating and implementing all the risk management activities of the |
Company. It ensure that risks remain within the boundaries as defined by the Board, comply with the risk parameters an:
prudential limits and work out remedial measures. The core function is to identify, measure, monitor and report key risks
to which company may be exposed. It works in close coordination with all the functions and business units that
involved in risk taking.

Risk Management department undertakes the following activities on regular basis utilizing the overall risk framework:

- Formulate policies and guidetines for mapaging all risk categories. _

- Develop systems and procedures. These systems and procedures should be capable of accurate measurement
the risks to identify deviation from approved risk parameters.

- Facilitate introduction and implementation of prudent practices for risk management.

- Facilitate management in business decisions by providing analytical risk reviews.

- Communicate and Haise with other functions and business units in carrying out risk reviews, analysis an{:
mitigation activities. ‘

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value, either when due or at
time thereafter. This risk arises from the potential that a customer or counterparty's willingness to meet an obligation or



J4.1.1
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Housing Finance is the core function of the Company and credit risk is the major risk faced by the Company. Credit risk
is incurred mainly in the following two areas of its operations: -

- In its credit operations, where it provides housing finance to refail or wholesale clients; and

- In treasury operations where credit risk is incurred with counterparties in its investments in financial markets and
instruments.

Overall credit risk is monitored by Credit Committee at Head Office, which reviews and recommends improvements in|
credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior. To further strengthen credit risk management and credit setup, proper
delegation of credit decisions at committee level with appropriate approving limits has been made.

Following measures have been applied to govern credit policy of the Company: -

- Lending process and decision is based on a full appreciation of the risks inherent in the transaction.

Management monitors credit portfolio through MIS reports.

- Stress testing for individual credits and the overall credit portfolio under adverse changes in the conditions
environment in which the borrowers operate.

- The Company has instituted an effective system for monitoring servicing of its performing credit portfolio and
collection of non performing portfolio.

" _  The Company creates loan loss provisions against non-performing advances in accordance with Prudentia
Regulations issued by SBP.

Credit Risk Mitigation

It is the Company's policy to reduce or mitigate credit risk on credit facilities or exposures, by securing these w1t3
collaterals. To correctly assess the extent to which the collateral mitigates the credit risk the collateral must be value
according to a specified valuation method, documented and monitored.

In this regard following steps have been taken: -

- Qutsourcing of property title verification.
- Outsourcing of borrower income verification.
- Outsourcing of property valuation.

Credit Risk is also mitigated through a set up of sub credit committee at Zonal and Regional level for credit approvai;
depending upon the level of risk assumed. Overall credit risk is monitored by central credit committee which reviews an
recommends improvements in credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior.

To strengthen credit risk management and to fulfill SBP requirements, the company is working to develop and implement
internal credit risk rating system for its entire credit portfolio.

Collateral & Security

collateral is taken within agreed parameters. The legal mechanism by which collaterals is pledged and the company
procedures ensure that the company has clear rights over the collaterals and may liquidate, retain or take legal possessio
of it in a timely manner in the event of default.

Collateral is an important mitigate of credit risk. All the residential mortgages are collateralized. Valuation of thE
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34.1.21

34.1.2.2

Insurance Cover

- Every borrower and guarantor is insured for life and disability for repayment of the balance amount of the loans.

- Every property taken as collateral is insured.

Credit Concentration Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk related to the degree of diversification in the credit portfolio, i.e. the risk inherent in doing

business with large customers or not being cqually exposed across borrower types and geographical regions. The concentration risk
can arise in loan book as well as investment book. ‘

Segmental information

Segmental Information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical distribution of Advances, Deposits,
Contingencies and Commitments.

Segments by class of business

2017
Contingencies and
Housing finance Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 % in '000 % in '000 %
Individuals 14,875,527 99.82 - - 290,160 53.72
Others 26,727 0.18 - - 249,936 46.28
14,902,254 100.00 - - 540,096 100.00
2016
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees . Percent Rupees " Percent
in '000 % in 000 % in '000 %
Individuals 15,898,460 99.83 - - 518,900 71.65
Others 26,828 0.17 - - 205,352 28.35
15,925,288 100 - - 724,252 100.00
Segment by sector
2017
Contingencies and
Housing finance Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in "000 % in '000 % in "000 Yo
Public / Government 18,097 0.12 - - 193,325 35.79
Private 14,884,157 99.88 - - 346,771 64.21
14,902,254 100 - - 540,096 100
2016
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 % in 000 Yo in ‘000 %o
Public / Government 18,198 0.11 - - 193,325 26.69
Private 15,907,090 99.89 - - 530,927 73.31
15,925,288 100 - - 724,252 160




34.1.2.3 Details of'non-perﬁirnﬁng advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2017 2016
Classified Specific Classified Specific
Advances Provisions Advances Provisions
Held Held
(Rupees in ‘600)
Individuals 6,639,729 3,290,063 6,708,872 3,932,643
Others 26,727 26,827 26,827 26,827
6,666,456 3,316,890 6,735,699 3,959,470 |
34.1.2.4 Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector
2017 2016
Classified Specific Classified Specific |
Advances Provisions Advances . Provisions
Held Held
(Rupees in ‘000) -
Public/ Government 18,097 18,097 18,198 18,197
Private 6,648,359 3,298,793 6,717,501 3,941,271
6,666,456 3,316,890 6,735,699 3,959,468
34.1.2.5 Geographical segment analysis
Profit / (loss) _
before Total assets Net assets Contingencies and
taxation employed employed commitments
{Rupees in *000) '
2017
Pakistan 2,013,876 20,330,073 15,029,102 540,096
2016
Pakistan (835,867) 20,906,471 14,319,042 724,252

24
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1.

38.

39,

39.1

39.2

RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures have been reclassified and re-arranged where necessary for the purpose of better presentation. Major
reclassifications are as follows:

From To Rupees
Relief package and reprocessing ‘ Write-off against advances - 155,000
adjustments .
DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

: : 28 MAR 2018 :

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand rupees except stated otherwise.
Captions as prescribed in BSD Circular no. 4 dated February 17, 2006 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan in respect of

which no amounts are outstanding have not been reproduced in these financial statements except for in the balance sheet,
and profit and loss account.

1
[t }/ f /(“O
MANAGING DIRECTOR CTOR IRE R DIRECTOR




